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Bryan Schwartz (SBN 209903) 
BRYAN SCHWARTZ LAW 
180 Grand Avenue, Suite 1550 
Oakland, CA 94612 
Tel.: 510-444-9300 
FAX: 510-444-9301 
Email: Bryan@llryanSchwartzI.aw.com 

Attomey for Individual and Representative Plaintiffs 

IN THE UNITED STATBS DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF C..A LIFORNIA 

Rosalie Pearson and Dennis Newsham, 
individuaUy, on behalf of others similarly 
situated, <lnd on behalf of the genera! 
public, 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

Samsonite Company Stores, Inc., 
Samsonitc COJporation, and DOES 1-50, 
inclusive, 

DefendRllts. 

CV-09_1263-JSW 

Before the lIon .. Jeffrcy S. White 

CLASS AND COLLF.CI1VE ACTrON 

I<'IRST AMENDF.D COMPLAINT FOR 
DAMAGES, RESTITUTION AND 
IN.JUNCTlVE RF.I,mF 

(1) Violation of Fair labor Standards Act 
29 U.S.c. Seclion 207 

(2) Violation of California Labor Code 
Sec lion. 510,1194, and 1198, and IWC 
Wage Order(s) 

(3) Failure 10 Provide Hemizcd Wage 
Statements (California Labor Code 
Sedion 226) 

(4) Failnre to Provide aud/or Autborize 
Meal and Rest Periods (California 
Labor Code 512, 226.7, and lWC Wage 
Order(s» 

(5) Violation of California Busine.~s and 
Professious Code Sections 17200 eI seq. 

(6) Breach of Contract iu California 

(7) Breach of Contract iu New York 

(8) Violation of New York Wage and Hour 
Law (New York Labor Law Article 19, 
§§ 650 111 &eq., and New York State 
ITc]!arfment of Labor Regulations, 12 
N.y.C.R.R. Part 142) 

(9) Retaliation for Protected Acti\'ity (New 
York Labor Law §215; Fair Labor 

\--- ---o,c"O'~T AMENDED CLASS AN!) COU.ECnVE ACTION COMPLATNT'---- --i 



Case3:09-cv-01263-JSW   Document14    Filed05/29/09   Page2 of 20

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

L 

Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 
215(a)(3» 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

This is a collective and class action brought by Individual and Representative 

Plaintiffs Rosalie "Lee" Pearson and Dennis Ncw~ham, on their own behalf and on behalr urlhe 

proposed class identified below. Plaintiffs and the putative class members were or are employed 

by Defendant Samsonite Company Stores, Inc., and certain Doe Defendants, or their 

predecessors-ill-interest, as Storc Managers. As Store Managers, Plaintiffs and the putative class 

members are, were, or should have been classified as covered, non-exempt employees under 

federal and state wage and hour laws, and entitled to overtime pay consistent with the 

requirements of these laws. These employees arc similarly sih18ted under the l'ederal Rules 0 

Civil Procedure 23 and the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA"), 29 U,S.C. § 216(b). 

2. The Collective Class is made of an persons who are or have been employed by 

Defendants as a Store Manager, at any time within the United States within thr!l<l years prior to 

this action's filing date, through the date of final disposition of this action (the "Collective Class 

Period"). 

3. The California Class i~ made up orall persons who are or have been employed by 

Defendants as a Store Manager in the Slnle of Calif om in within the period four years prior to the 

filing date of this Complaint (the "California Class Period"). 

4. The New York ela"s is made up of aU persons who are or have been employed by 

Defendants as a Store Manager in the State of New York within the period six years prior to the 

filing date of this Complaint (the "New York Class Period," collectively with California the 

"State Class Periods"). 

4. During the Collective Class Period and the State Class Periods, Defendants failed 

to pay appropriate overtime compensation to each member of the Collective Class and Class as 

required by federal and state law. Plaintilfs seek relief for the Class pursuant to the applicable 

I-------""C,C'"'C'"MWO"""D"';;D CLASS AND ~2~1.LECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT 
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1 Statc Law, Rules, Regulations, and Wage Ordcrs of the Industrial Wclfarc Commission ("IWC"). 

2 Plaintiffs also seek rclief for the Collectiv~ Class under the Fair Labor Standard~ Act. All of the 

3 relief sought is to remedy the DefcndHllts' failure to pay all wages due, pay appropriate ovcrtime 

4 compensation, to provide or authori:r.e meal and rest periods, and to maintain aacurate timc 

5 records, in addition to injunctive relicf. Plaintifrs atso assert breach of contract claims, sincc they 

6 were promised consideration of vacation timc based on hours worked, and they did net accrue 

7 and were not paid for vacation time for their ovcrtime hourn. 

8 5. At\er filing this lawsuit, Plaintiff Newsham suffcred retaliation when his rate 0 

9 pay WlIS cut during Detendants' process of reclassifYing Store MHIlagers. 

10 THE PARTIES 

11 5 Individual and repre5cntative Plaintiff Rosalie "Lee" Pearson (the "California 

12 Plaintiff') residcs in SlIn Francisco, California (San Francisco County). She has been cmploycd 

J3 by DcfcndHllts sinC<l June 2006 as a Store Manager, working in San Francisco. l'laintilfPearson 

14 brings her claim on behalf of herself and the Collective and CaHtbrnia Classes. 

IS 6. Individual and represcutativ~ Plaintiff Dennis Newsham (the "Ncw York 

16 Plaintin") resides in New Yurk City, New York. He has been employed by Oefendants since 

17 April 2007 as a Store Mauager, working in New York City. Plaintiff Newsham brings his claim 

18 on behalf ofhimsclf and thc Collective and New York Classes. 

]9 7. Upon information and belief, Defendant Samsonite Company Stores, Inc., is an 

20 Indiana Curporation doing business in and maintaining offices in s~veral states throughout the 

21 United States, including a facility in San FJaI\ciseo, California. 

22 8. Upon information and belief, Defendant Samsonite Corporation is a Ddawdre 

23 Corporation doing bu~ine&s in and maintaining offices in several states throughout the United 

24 States, including a facility in San Francisco, California. 

25 9. Defendants Does I-50, inclusive, are sued hcrein under fictitious names. Their 

26 true names and capacities are Illlknown to Plaintifi's. When their true names and capacities are 

27 ascertained, Plaintiffs will amend tllis complaint by inserting tlleir tOle names and capacities 

28 herein. Plaintiffs arc infonned and believe and thereon allcge that each of the fictitiously-named 
-3-

FIRST AMENDED CLASS AND COL',,'·,'-',,'vn""CCinON COMPI ,MNT -----



Case3:09-cv-01263-JSW   Document14    Filed05/29/09   Page4 of 20

Defendants is responsible in some maJuler for the occurrences herein alleged, and that the 

2 danmges of Plaintiffs and the potative c1a~~ members herein alleged were proximately caused by 

3 sueh Defendants. 

4 9, Plaintiffs arc informed, believe, and thereon allege that each of the Dofendants 

5 herein was, at all times relevant to this action, the agent, employee, rcpre.'ientative partner, and/or 

6 joint venturer of the remaining Defcndants and was acting within the course and seope of the 

7 relationship. Plaintiffs arc further informed, believe, and thereon allege that eaeh of the 

8 Defendants herein gave consent to, ratified and authorized the acts alleged herein to the remaining 

9 Defendant~. 

10 JURlSDK'TION AND VENUE 

II 10, This Court has subject matter jurisdietiou pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 as thi~ case 

12 is being brought UIlder the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 207 el seq. Each represeutative Plaintiffhas signed 

13 a con~ent form to join this lawsuit, previously filed with this Court. "lhis Court has original 

14 jurisdiction over all the state and J<~denll claims UIlder the Class Action Fairness Act, 28 U.S.C. 

15 §1332(d), because, upon information and belief, the amoUllt in controversy exceeds 

16 $5,000,000.00 and the parties are eiti:r.ens of diverse jurisdietious. This Court also has 

17 supplemeutaljurisdiction over PI~intiffs' slate law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.c. § 1367. 

18 11. Venue is proper iu thc United States District Court, Northern District orCalifomia 

19 pursuant to 28 U.S.c. § 1391, because Defendauts openlle a facility in San Franciscu COimty, 

20 California, and because a substaJltial part of the events giving rise to the claims occurred ill this 

21 district. 

22 12, Pursuant to Civil I..R. 3-2 (c) and (d), this actiou is properly as~igned to the 

23 Northem District of California beclIllse a substantial portion of the events giving rise to this 

24 dispute occurred in San Fnlficisco County, Califomia. 

25 COLLECfIVE ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

13, Plaintiffs briug this action on behalf of themselves and other employws similarly 

27 situated as authori:r.ed UIlder FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 216(h). The employees similarly situated are: 

Collective Class: All per~ons who are or have been employed by Defendants as a 

w=="-' 'iiCm" -=iM, -c-------1 FIRST AMENDED CLASS ANI) COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAIN'/, 



Case3:09-cv-01263-JSW   Document14    Filed05/29/09   Page5 of 20

2 

3 

4 14. 

Store Manager, within the United Slates at any time three years 

prior to the filing of this Complaint, to the final disposition of this 

Upon infonnation and belief, Defendants suffered and permitted Plaintiffs and the 

5 Collective Class to work more than forty hours per week \vithout appropriate overtime 

6 compensation. 

7 15. 

8 16. 

Defendants' unlawful conduct has been widespread, repeated, and consistent. 

Upon information and belief, Defendants knew that Plaintiffs and the Collective 

9 Class, performed work that required overtime pay. Defendants have operated lUlder a scheme to 

10 dcpri-'e these employees of appropriate ovcrtim~ compensatiou by tailing to properly compensate 

11 them for all hours worked. 

12 17. Defendants misclassificd PlaintitIs and members of the Collective Class \vith the 

13 Job titles of Store Manager as "exempt" from federal and state overtime laws. Defendants 

14 misrepresented 10 these employees that they were "exempt" and therefore were not entitled to 

15 overtime pay for houIS worked in excess offorty a week. 

16 18. Defendants' conduct, as sct forth in this Complaint, was willful and in bad faith, 

17 and has eauscQ significant damages to Plaiutiffs, and the Collective Class. 

1 " 
19. Def"'ndants are liable under the FLSA for failing to properly compensate Plaintins 

19 and the Collective Class, and as such, notice should be scnt to the Collective Class. "Jbcre are 

20 numerous similarly situated curreut and former employees of Defendants who have been denied 

21 overtime pay in Violation of the FLSA who would benefit from the issuance of a Court supervised 

22 notice of the present !aw~uil and the opportunity to join In the present lawsuit. Those sinlilarly 

23 situated employees are known to Defendants and are readily identifiable through Defendants' 

24 reconls. 

25 CLASS ALLF,GATJONS 

26 20. Plaintit1s bring this action as a class action pursuant to Rule 23 of the l"edenll 

27 Rules of Civil Procedure on behalf of the following defined classes: 

28 Proposed California Class: All employees of Defendants who were, are, or will 

-5-

FmST AMEN[)EIl CLASS AND COLLFCTNEAcnON COMPLAINT 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 21. 

be employed in the State ofCaJifomia as a Store Manager at 

any time within four years of the filing of this Complaint 

IUllil the final disposition of this casco 

Prop(}sed New York Class: An employees of Ocfendanls who were, arc, or will 

be employed in the State of New York as II Store MlIllager 

at any lime \\1lhin six years of the filing of this Complaint 

until the fmal disposition of this CIISC. 

Numerosity; The Proposed Class is ~ numerous that joinder or all members is 

9 impracticable. Plaintiff is infomled an<.l believes, and on that basis alleges, that during the 

10 relevant time period, Defendants employed dozens of people who arc geographically dispersed 

11 and who satisfy the definition orthe Proposed Class. 

12 22. Typicality: Plaintiffs' claims are lypical of the members of the Proposed 

13 Classes. Plaintiffi; are infonncd and believe that, like other Store Managers, they routinely 

14 worked more than eight holUs per day and more than 40 hours per week during the Class Period. 

15 Plaintiffs had the same duties and responsibilities as other Class members and were subject to 

16 Defendants' pnlicy and practice of improperly treating and classifying these employecs as 

17 "exempt" from federal and state overtime law, misrepresenting to these cmployees that they were 

18 cxempt from federal and state overtime law, improperly failing to pay appropriate overtime 

19 compensation for aU hours worked, failing to provide or authori/e meal and rest breaks in 

20 compliance with state laws, failing tn maintain accurate time records of hours worked by the 

21 Proposed Classes, failing to is,ue accurate itemized wage statements to these individuals, an(} 

22 failing to pay appropriate vacation guaranteed under contract for the number of hours they 

23 m:tuaUy worked. 

24 23. Superiority: A class action is superior to othcr available methods of the fair an(} 

25 emcient adjudication of the controversy, particularly in the context of wage and hour litigation 

26 where individual plaintiffs lack the financial resonrces to vigorously prosecute separate lawsuits 

27 in federal court against large corporate defendants and fear retaliation. Prosecuting hundreds 0 

28 identical, individual lawsuits nationwide does not promote judicial efficiency or equity aud 

-6-
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1 consislency in judicial results. 

2 24. Adequacy: Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the 

3 Proposed Class, and has retained eounsc! experienced in complex wage and hour class and 

4 collective action litigation . 

5 25. . Commonality: Common questions of law and lact exist to all members of the 

6 Proposed Class arrl predominate over any queslions solely affecting individual members of the 

7 Proposed Class, including but not limited to: 

8 

9 

10 

" 
" 
" 
14 

15 

" 
17 

18 

" 
20 

" 
22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 26. 

A. 

R. 

c. 

n. 

E. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

L 

Whether Defendanls improperly classified Plaintiffs and members of the 

State Classes with the job title of Store Manager as exempt; 

Whether Defendants unlawfully failed to fully pay appropriate overtime 

compensation to members of the Propnsed Classes in violation of federal 

and state wage laws; 

Whether PI3intifis and State Clas.~ members who are no longer employed 

with Defendants arc entitled to penalties lor failufC to timely pay wages 

upon tennination of employment, pursuant to the applicable st3te laws; 

Whether Defendants' policies 3ml practices provide andlor authorize meal 

and res! pcriods in compliancc with applicable state laws; 

Whether Delendants failed to keep accurate time records for all hours 

worked by the Plaintiffs and the Proposed Class in violation or FLSA, 29 

U.S.C. § 201 et seq., and state wage laws; 

Whethcr Dettmdants provided adequate itemized wage slatements to the 

Plainti fl's and the Class pnrsuant to state wage laws; 

Whether Defendants paid Plaintiffs and Stale Class members for the rut! 

va~ation time they earned, based, as promised, on their actual hours 

worked, including overtime hours; 

The proper measure of damages sustained by the Proposed Classes; 3Ild 

Whether DefendW1ts' actions were "willful." 

This case is maintainable as a class 3etion under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(l) because 
-7-

1r------~''''''''"7cACM''',illNDED CLASS AND cor .1.FCTlVL! ACTION COMP,j,C,A""'"'~---



Case3:09-cv-01263-JSW   Document14    Filed05/29/09   Page8 of 20

prosecution of aetion~ by or against individual members of the class would result in inconsistent 

2 or varying adjudications and create the risk of incompatible standards of conduct tor Defendants. 

3 Further, adjudication of cach individual member's claim w; separate action would be dispositive 

4 of the interest of other individual~ not party to this action, impeding their ability to protect their 

5 interests. 

6 27. Class certification is also appropriate under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3) becau~e 

7 questions of law and fact conilllOn to the Proposed Clas.~es predominate over any questions 

8 aITeeling only individual members orlhe Proposed Clas~, and because a clw;s action is superior to 

9 other available methods for the fair and emdent adjudication of tllis litigation. Defendants' 

iO cOIlUllon and unitbnn policies and pmcti~es denied the Proposed Classes the overtime pay to 

11 which they arc entitled. The damagcs suffered by thc individual Proposed Class mcmbers are 

12 small compared tn the expense and bnrden of individual prosecution of this litigation. Proposed 

J3 Class members fear workplace retaliation and being "blackballed" from obtaining fnture 

14 employment in the retail industry. Tn addition, class certification is snperior because it will 

15 obviate the need for unduly duplicative litigation that might result in inconsistent judgmcnts about 

16 Defendants' practices. 

17 28. Plaintiff intends to send notice to all members of the Proposed Classes to the 

18 extent required by Rule 23. Thc names and address of the Proposed Classes are available from 

19 Defendants. 

20 INDIVIDIJAL CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

21 29. On or about May 20, 2009, less than two months after engaging in protecteu 

22 activity by filing this lawsuit alleging miscla~ific3tion of his Store Manager position as exempt 

23 from overtime laws, Dcnnis Newsham was notified that DcfcndanL~ would be finally classifYing 

24 his position as nOll-exempt. 

25 30. Plaintiff Newsham's regular rate or pay just prior to filing the lawsuit and 

26 immediately thereatler was $37.l274fhouf. On May 20, 2009, Defendants notified him that his 

27 pay rate would be $31.27!llOnr going forward, as a result of his reclassification as a non-exempt 

28 employee, though his job responsibilities remain unchanged. 
~8~ 
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31. With this cut in his regular rate or pay, Plaintiff Newsham suffered unlawful 

2 retaliation loc having engaged in protected activity. 

3 32. As a fCsult of this retaliatory pay cut, Plaintiff Newsham has suffered menIal and 

4 emotional distress. 

5 F1RST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

6 Failure to Pay Overtime Compensation in Violation of the Fair Labur Standards Ad 

7 (On Behalf ofl'laintiffs and the Collective Class) 

8 33. PiainliITs, on behalf ofthcmselvcs and the co1!~!iye class, allege and incorporate 

9 by reference the allegations in the preceding paragraphs. 

iO 34. Plaintiffs consent in wri!ing to be a party of this action, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 

II 216(b). Plaintiffs' ,vrilten consent forms were previously filed with this Court. Plaintiffs 

\2 anticipate that other individuals will continue to sign consent fomls and join as plaintiffs. 

13 35. At all relevant times, Defendanls have been, and continue to be, "employers" 

14 engaged in interstate commerce and/or in the production of goods for commerce, within the 

15 meaning of the l'LSA, 20 U.S.C. § 203. At all relevant times, Defendants have employed and 

16 continues to employ employees, including Plaintills, and the Collective Class. At all relevant 

17 times, upon information and belief, Defendants have had gross operating revenues in excess 0 

18 $500,000.00. 

19 36. The FLSA requires each covered employers such as Defendants to compensate all 

20 non-exempt employees at a rate of not less than one and one-halftimes the regular rate of pay for 

21 work perfOlTIled in exees.~ offorty hours per work w~""ek. 

37. During their employmcnt with Defendants, within the applicable statute 0 

23 limitations, Plaintiffs and the other Collective Class members worked in excess of forty hours per 

24 workweek. De~pile the honrs worked by PlaintilTs and the Collective elm;s members, Defendants 

25 willfully, in bad faith, and in knowing violation of the Federal Fair Labor Standard~ Act, failed 

26 and refused to pay them the appropriate overtime compensation for all the hours worked in excess 

27 offorty. 

28 
~9~ 

!-------"FJ"'"'"'cAOMWOrnhlCD"'E'D CLASS AND COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT 
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38. By failing to accurately record, report, amI/or preserve records of hours worked by 

2 Plaintiffs and the Collective Class, Defendants have failed to make, keep, and prc!\erve records 

3 with respect to each of ils employees sumcient to determine their wages, hours, and other 

4 conditions and practice of employment, ill violation of the FLSA, 29 V.S.c. § 201, ef seq. 

5 39. The foregoing conduct, a~ alleg~u, constitutes a willful violation of the FLSA, 

6 ,vithin the meaning of29 U.S.C. § 255(3). 

7 40. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves UIId the Colle<:tivc Class, seek damages in the 

8 amount of their respective unpaid overtime compensation, liquidated damages from three years 

9 immediately preceding the tiling of this action, plus interests and costs as allowed by law, 

10 pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §§ 216(b) and 255(a), and sueh other legal and equitable relief as the Court 

II deemsjustandproper. 

12 41. Plaintiffs, on behalr or themselves and the Colle<:tive Class, seck recovery of their 

13 attorneys' fees and costs to be paid by Defendants, as provided by the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 216(h). 

14 SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

15 Failure to Pay O~erlime Compcnsation in Violation of California Law 

16 (On Behalr oflhc California Plaintiff and thc California Class) 

17 42. Plainlifi' Pean;on, on behalf of hersdf and the California Class, alleges and 

18 incorporates by referen~ the allegations in the preceding paragraphs. 

19 43. AI all rele~ant times herein, Iwe Wage Order NO.7 (8 C.C.R. § 11070) and 

20 California Labor Code §51O reqnired an employer, like Defendants, to pay overtime premilUll(s) 

21 for hours worked in ex<:ess of 8 in a given workday, 40 in a given workweek, or on the seventh 

22 day worked iu a single workweek. Pursuant to California Lahor Code § 1198, it is IIIllawrul to 

23 employ persons for hnurs longer than the hours sct by the Industrial Welfare Commission 

24 ("IWC"), or under conditions prohibited by the applicable \,age orders of the rwc. 
2S 44. Plaintiff Pearson is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that mcmbers 0 

26 the Class worked in exeess of eight hours per day and in excess of 40 hours per week, and 

27 Defendants unlawfully failed to pay members of the Class the proper overtime compensation 

28 required in violation oOWC Wage Order 7 (8 C.C.R. § 11070), and the California Labor Code §§ 

-10-
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510 and 1198. Pursuant 10 California Labor Code § 1194, the Plaintiff Pearson and the other 

2 Class memhers an: entitled to recover their unpaid overtime compensation. 

J 45. As a dir<::cl and proximale result of Defendants' unlawful conduct, a.~ set forth 

4 herein, Plaintiff Pearson and the Cla~s have sustained damages, including loss of earnings for 

5 hours of overtime worked on behalf of Defendants in an amollnlto be established al trial, plus 

6 interesl, allomeys' fees and costs. 

7 THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

8 Failure to Provide Accurate Itemized Wage Statements 

9 (On Behalf of the California Plaintiffanu the California Class) 

10 46. PlaintilT Pearson, on behalf of herself and the California Class, alleges and 

11 incorporates by reference the allegations in the preceding parag .... lphs. 

12 47. California I.abor Code § 226(a) providcs thaI, at the time of each paymenl 0 

13 wages, an employer shall provide each employee with a wage statement itcmizing, among other 

14 things, the total hours worked by the employee in lhe pay period. California Labor Code § 226(e) 

15 provides that an employee suffering injury as a result of a knowing and intentional failure by an 

16 employer to comply with Labor Code § 226(a) may Ie(;over the greater of his or her aetual 

17 damage.~ or a pcnalty of $50 fur the initial pay period in which II violation occurs and $100 per 

18 employee lor each violation in a subsequent pay period (up to a maximum of$4,000), in addition 

19 to attorneys fees and costs. 

20 48. Defendants knowingly and intcntionaily failed to provide timely, a~uratc, 

21 itcmi7.ed wage statements including, infer alia, hours worked, to Plaintiff Pearson and the 

22 Calilbmia Class In accordance with Labor Code § 226(a). Such failure caused iTUliry to Plainti 

23 Pearson and Ihe California Class members, by, among other things, impeding them from knowing 

24 the total hours worked ilnd the amount of wages to which they are and """Cre entitled. The 

25 Caliromia Plaintiff and the CalHbmia Cla~s ilre thcrelbre entitled to the damages and penalties 

26 provided for IUlder Labor Code § 226(e). Pursuant to Labor Code section 226(g), the Califonlia 

27 Plaintiff and the California Class arc also entitled to and seek injunctive relief requiring 

28 Defendanls to comply with Labor Code 226(a). 

-11-
FIRST AMEN[)ED cr .ASS AND COL"C'C'C"'"OV"F. AC liON COMPLAINT·---- ---I 
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1 

2 

3 

4 49. 

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELlEJ<' 

Failure to Provide Rest Breaks and Meal Periods 

(On Bellalr ufthe California Plaintiff !lnd the California Class) 

Plaintiff Pearson, on behalf of herself and the California ChlS8, alleges and 

5 inCOTporates by reference the allegations in the proceeding paragraphs. 

6 50. California Labor Code section 512 prohibits an employer from employing an 

7 employee for a work period ofmure than five hours per day without providing the employee with 

8 a meal period of not less than 30 minutes, or for a work period of more than 10 hours per day 

<) without providing the employee with a second meal period Dfnot less than 30 minutes. 

10 51. Section 11 of Wage Order No, 7 provides (and al <111 times relevant hereto 

11 provided) in relevant part that: 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

No employer shall employ any p~rson for a work period of more than fiv~ (5) 
hours without a meal period or not less than 30 minutes, except that when a work 
period of not more than six (6) hours will complete the day's work the meal period 
may be waived by mutual consent of the employer and the employee. An employer 
may not employ an employee for a work period of more than ten (10) hours per 
day without providing the employee with a second meal period of not less than 30 
minntes, except that if the tulal hours worked is no more than 12 hours, the second 
meal period may be waived by mutual consent of the employer and the empluyee 
only if the fust meal period was not waived. Unless the employee is relieved ofaH 
duty doring a 30 minute meal period, the meal period shall be considered an "on 
duty" meal period and counted as lime worked. An "on duty" meal period shall be 
permitted only when the nature of the work prevents an employee from being 
relieved of all duty and '-"hen by \wilten agreement between the parties an on-the­
job paid meal period i~ agreed 10. The \\Tilten agreement shall state that the 
employee may, in wriling, revoke (he agreement at any lime. If an employer falls 
to provide an employee a meal period in accordance with the applicable provisions 
of this order, the employer shaH pay the employee one (1) hour of pay at the 
omployee's regular rate of compensation for each workday that the meal period i~ 
not provided. In all places of employment where employees are required to eat on 
the premises, a suilable plaec for that purpose shall be designated. 

52. Section (2 of Wage Order No. 7 provides (and at all times relevant hereto 

provided) in relevant part that: 

Every employer shall authon?c and peml;t all employees to take rest periods, 
which insofar as practicable shall be in the middle of each work period. The 

-12-
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24 

25 

26 

27 

authorized rest period time shall be based on the total hours worked daily at the 
rate of ten (10) minutes net rc~llime per four (4) hours or major fraction thereof. 
However, a rest period need not be authorized lOT employees whose lotal daily 
work time is less than three ~nd one-half (3 Ill) hours. Authori"ed rest period time 
shall he counted as hOllrs worked for which there shall be no deduction from 
wageR. If an employer fails to provide an employee a re~t period in accordance 
with the applicable provisions of this order, the employer shall pay the employee 
nne (\) hour of pay at the employee's regular rate of compensation for each 
workday that the rest period is not provided. 

53. California Labor Code section 226.7 prohibits any employer Cmm requiring any 

employee to work during any meal or rest period mandated by an applicable Iwe wage order, 

and provides that an employer that fails to provide an employee with a required rest break: or meal 

period shall pay that employee one additional hour of pay at the employee's regular rate 0 

compensation for each work day thaI the employer does not provide a compliant meal or rest 

period. 

54. Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff Pearson and California Class members with 

meal periods as required by law, and failed to authori7e and pernlit the Plaintiff and Class 

members to take rest periods a~ required by law. Plaintiff and the CI!lSS member~ are therefore 

entitled to payment of the meal and rest period premiums as provided by law. 

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIF.F 

Unfair Practice nnder the Unfair Competition Act 

(On Bchalf of the California Plaintiff and the California Class) 

55. Plaintiff Pearson, on behalf of herself and the California Class, aJlegcs and 

incorporates hy reference the alkgations in the preccding paragraphs. 

56. Section 17200 of the California Business and Profcssinns Code _ California's 

Unfair Competition Law - prohihil~ unfair competitioJi by prohibiting, illter alia, any unlawful 

or unfair business acts or practices. The foregoing conduct by Defendants, as alleged, constitutes 

unlawful busiucss actions and pract!ces in violation of Section 17200, et seq. 

57. Pursuant to Business and Professions Code § 17200 e( seq., Plaintiff Pearson and 

the California Class members arc entilled to rc~titution of the overtime earnings, vacation time, 

and other unpaid wages and premiums alleged herein that Del'mdants have improperly withheld 

-13-
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I and retained during a period thai conll1lcntt~ four years prior 10 the filing of this action, a 

2 pemlunent injunction requiring Defendants to pay overtime and meal/rest premiums to all 

3 lVorker~ as defmcd herein, in California, an award of attom~ys' fees pursuant 10 Code of Civil 

4 Procedure 8ectioll 1021.5, ami other applicable law, and costs. 

5 SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

6 Hreach nfOral and Written, Express and Implied Contract 

7 (On Behalf of the Calirornia Plaintiff and the CalifofJliu Class) , 58. PlaintilfPearsol1, on behalf ofhersclfand the Ca1ifomia CJas~, alleges and 

9 incorporates by reference the allegation~ in the preceding paragraphs. 

10 59. Plaintiff Pearson and the California Class members were promised as a condition 

11 oflhei! employment and in consideration for their labor that they would accrue vacation hased on 

12 their number of hours worked. 

13 60. In violation of this contract, which was oral and written, express and implied, 

14 Defendants have not paid the California Plaintiff and the California Class vacation time for their 

15 overtime hours worked. 

16 61. Plaintiff Pearson and the California Class members are entitled to payment or 

t7 crediting of the missing vacation time, plus interest, and any other relief available under the 

18 eommonlaw of contracts, in an amonnt to be determined at trial. 

t9 EIGH11I CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

20 Failure to Pay Overtime Compensati(}n in Violatiun of New York Law, on Behalf of New 

21 York Nailll'il Plaintiff and the New York Class 

22 (On Behalf of the New York Plaintiff and New York Class) 

23 62. Plaintiff Newsham, on behalf of himself and the New York Cluss, alleges and 

24 incorporates by reference the allegations in the preceding p;!ragraph~. 

25 

26 

27 

2R 

63. At ,,11 times relevant to this action, the New York Named Plaintiff and the Ncw 

York Rule 23 Class were cmployed by Detendants within the meaning orNew York Labor Law, 

Article 19. 

-14-
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64. Oy the course or conduct set forlh above, Defendants have violated lhe New york 

labor Law Article 19, §§ 650 et seq., and the supporting New York Stale Department of labor 

Regulations, 12 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 142 (''New York I.aoof Law"). 

65. New York Labor Law requires employers, such as Defendants, to pay overtime 

compensation \0 aU non-excmpl employees. The New York Labor Law also requires an employer 

tu pay employees for all hours worked allhe agreed upon mte of pay. 

66. Defendant:; have had a policy and practice of failing and refusing to pay proper 

overtime pay to the New York Named Plaintiff and 10 the New York Rule 23 ClatlS for their hours 

worked. 

67. As II result of Defendants' failure to pay wages earned and due, and lheirdecision 

to withhuld wages earned and due to the New York Named Plainliffamlthe New York Rule 23 

Class, Defendants have violated and continues to violate the New York Labor Law. 

68. The New York Named Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and the New York Rule 23 

Class, seeks the amount of the IIIlderpayments based on DeFendants' Failure to pay one and one 

halftimes the regular nile of pay for work perfOffiled in excess of forty per week, as provided by 

the New York I.ubor Law, and such other legal and equitable relief from Defendants' IIIllawful 

and willfnl conduct as the Court deems jusl and proper. The New York Named Plaintiff does not 

seek liquidated damages on behalf of the New York Rule 23 Clas.~. 

69. The New York Numed Plaintiff, on behalf ofhimsclfund the New York Rule 23 

Class, seeks recovery of allollleys' fees and costs to be paid by Defendants as provided by the 

New York l.abor Law. 

NINTH CLAIM I<'OR RELIEF 

Breach of Oral and 'Vritten, Express and Implied Contract 

(On H~half ofthe New York Plaintiff and the New York Class) 

-15-
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I 70. PlainliffNcwsham, on bchalfofhimselfulld the New York Class, alleges and 

2 incorporates by reference the allegations in the preceding paragraphs. 

3 71. Plaintiff Newsham and the New York Class members were promised as a 

4 condition of their employment and in consideration for their labor that they would accrue 

5 vacation based on their number ofhours wOIked. 

6 72. In violation nflhis contract, which was oral and written, express and implied, 

7 Defendants have not paid lh", New York Plaitllilfand the New York Class vacation time for their 

8 overtime hours worked. 

9 73. PlailllifrNewsham and the New York Class members are entitled to payment or 

10 crediting orlhe missing vacation time, plus interest, and any other relief available under the 

II common law of contmcts, in an amount 10 be determined at trial. 

12 TF.NTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

13 Retaliation for Filing a New York Stale Wage Complaint 

14 (On Behalf of Dennis Newsham) 

15 74. Plaintiff Newsham allegcs and incorporates by rcferencc the allegations in the 

16 preceding paragraphs. 

17 75. Undcr New York Labor Lilw §215, "[n]o employer ... shal1 discharge, penalize, or 

18 in any other manner discriminate against any employee beeame such employee has made a 

19 complaint to his employcr .... " 

20 76. On MaTch 24, 2009, PiaintiffNewsham engaged ill protected adivity nnder New 

21 York's Lahor Lilws by fIling this lawsnit. 

22 77. less than two months after filing this suit stating that his position was 

23 miscla~sified as exempt frum overtime, Plaintiff Newsham was notified by Defendants (his 

24 employers) that Defendants are rcclassifYing his position as non-exempt from ovcrtime (as sought 

25 in this lawsnit), but in the process, reducing his regular rate of pay from $37.1274fhour to 

26 S31.27fhour. 

27 78. Plaintirr Newsham's pay cui is an adverse employment action prohibited by New 

2l! York Labor Law §215. 

-16-
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79. Plaintiff Newsham '$ rcclas.<ification, resulting in the pay cut, is a direct and 

2 proximate result of his prior protected activity. 

3 80. As a result of this retaliation, Plaintift'Nc' .... sham has suffered mental and 

4 emotional distress. 

5 81. As a result of the retaliation, Plaintiff Newsham i~ and will continue 10 be entitled 

G to backpay, compensatory and punitive damages, along with inkrest, attorneys' fees, and all other 

7 relief available Imdcr New York Labor Law §215, in un amount to be determined at trial. 

8 EI,EVENTH CLAIM FOR RF,LlEF 

9 Retaliation for Hling a .Fair Labor Standards Act Complaint 

10 (011 Behalr of Dennis Newsham) 

11 82. PlaintiITNcwsham al!cges and incorporales by reference the allegations in the 

12 preceding panlgraphs. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 
18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

83. The FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §215(a)(3), makes it unlawful: 

to di~charge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee hecause 
such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to he instituted any 
proceeding under or related to this chapter, or has testified or is about to testify to 
in any such proceeding, or has served or is about to servo on an industry 
oonunittcc. 

84. lhe FLSA's anli-retaliation provision encourages reports of illegal activity, 

protecting any employ~e who protests about the failure to pay overtime wages. 

85. Because Plaintirr Dennis Newsham tiled a lawsuit complaining of wage payment 

and overtime violations, and therefore, engaged in protected actidty under the i'LSA, and was 

retaliated against with a pay cut, he is entitled to relief including but not limited to reimbursement 

of lost wages and benefits and interest thereon, damages, Jnlymenl of reasonable attomey's f~es, 

311d the posting of notices to employees. 

PRA YRR Hm RELIEF 

I----~=.~= =~-1_7-_==.==.== ____ _ 
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1 8G. WIIEREFORE, Plaintiffs, On behalf of themselves and aU members of the 

2 Co!1ective and State Classes, pmy IOf relief as [ollov"s: 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

A. 

c. 

D. 

E. 

E. 

G. 

H. 

I. 

J. 

That the Court determine Ihal this action may proceed as a class action 

under Rule 23(b)(l) and (3) of the Federal Rules D[Civil Procedure; 

That Defendants are found to have violaled the overtime, mcaJlrest period, 

itemized wage statementftime records, and failure to timely pay wages 

penalty provisions of the state wage laws cited above as to the respective 

Stale Classes, 

ThaI Defcndanls arc found 10 have violated the overtime provisions orthe 

Federal Fair Labor Standards Act as to P1aillliff.~ <Iud the Collective Class; 

That Defendants arc tbund to have violated the FLSA by failing to 

maintain accurate lime records of all the honrs worked by Plaintiffs and 

the CoHective Class; 

That Defendants are found to have rctaliated against Demus N~wsham for 

having engag~d in protected activity under New York and Federal 

"age/hour laws, causing him \\llIge loss, and emotional and mental 

distress, along with other damages; 

That Defendants' violations as described above arc found to be willful; 

An al'.'lIfd to Plaintiffs and the Classes for the amount of unpaid wages 

owed, liquidllted damages and penaltie~ where provided by stale and 

federal law, and interest thereon, subject 10 proofal trial; 

That Der~ndant~ be ordered and enjoined to pay restitution to Plaintiffs 

and the Classes due to Defendants' unlawful activities, pursuant to 

California and New York state laws cited above; 

That Defendants be required to compensate Plaintiffs and the State 

Classes tor vacation time accrued pursuant to the contract and implied 

contract, based npon actual hours worked, inc1udingovertime hours; 

That Defendants are required to pay PlaintitT Newsham backpay with 
-18-
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

" 
9 

10 

11 

12 87. 

K. 

L. 

M. 

N. 

interest and punitive damages for his retaliatory pay Cllt, among other 

relief; 

That Defelldant~ further be enjoined to cease and desist from unlawful 

activities in violation of slate laws cited above; 

That the Court grant declaratory relief slating that Defendants' scheme is 

unlav"ful; 

For an award of reasonable attorneys' fees and CO~ls pursuant to 29 U.S.C. 

section 216 andIor othcrapplicab1e state laws; and 

For such other and further relief, in law or equity, as this Court may deem 

appropriate ami just. 

DF;MANIl FOR ,flJRYTRIAL 

Pursuant to Rule 38(b) of (he Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff.~, 

13 individually and on bchalfof all olhers similarly situated, demand 1\ trial by jury. 

14 

15 Dated: May 29, 2009 

16 

17 
By: 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

26 

27 

28 
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